
 

cityoflfp.gov 

CITY OF LAKE FOREST PARK  

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

Tuesday, February 07, 2023 at 7:00 PM 

Meeting Location: In Person and Virtual / Zoom 

17425 Ballinger Way NE Lake Forest Park, WA 98155 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR PARTICIPATING IN THIS MEETING VIRTUALLY: 

Join Zoom Webinar: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87464653408 
Call into Webinar: 253-215-8782 | Webinar ID: 874 6465 3408 

 

The Planning Commission is providing opportunities for public comment by submitting a written comment 
or by joining the meeting webinar (via computer or phone) or in person to provide oral public comment. 

HOW TO PARTICIPATE WITH ORAL COMMENTS: 

If you are attending the meeting in person, there is a sign-in sheet located near the entrance to the room. 
Fill out the form and the presiding officer will call your name at the appropriate time. Oral comments are 
limited to 3:00 minutes per speaker. 

If you are attending the meeting via Zoom, in order to address the Commission during the Public 
Comment section of the agenda, please use the “raise hand” feature at the bottom of the screen. Oral 
comments are limited to 3:00 minutes per speaker.  Individuals wishing to speak to agenda items will be 
called to speak first in the order they have signed up.  The meeting host will call your name and allow 
you to speak. Please state your name and whether you are a resident of Lake Forest Park. The meeting 
is being recorded. 

HOW TO SUBMIT WRITTEN COMMENTS: 

https://www.cityoflfp.com/617/Hybrid-Planning-Commission-Meetings (use CTRL+CLICK to open this 
link) 

Written comments for public hearings will be submitted to Planning Commission if received by 5:00 p.m. 
on the date of the meeting; otherwise, they will be provided to the Planning Commission the next day. 
Because the City has implemented oral comments, written comments are no longer being read under 
Citizen Comments. 

For up-to-date information on agendas, please visit the City’s website at www.cityoflfp.com. 
 

 
 

 

1



AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 7:00 P.M. (confirm recording start) 

2. PLANNING COMMISSION'S LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

We’d like to acknowledge we are on the traditional land of a rich and diverse group of Native 
Peoples who have called this area home for more than 10,000 years. We honor, with gratitude, the 
land itself and the descendants of these Native Peoples who are still here today. In doing this we 
aim to illuminate the longer history of this land we call home, our relationship to this history, and 
the heritage of those peoples whose ancestors lived here before the European-American 
immigration that began in the 1800s. 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

4. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 

A. January 10, 2023 

5. MEETING DATES 

A. The next regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting is March 14, 2023 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

The Planning Commission accepts oral and written citizen comments during its regular meetings. 
Written comments are no longer being read during the meeting. Instructions for how to make oral 
Citizen Comments are available here https://www.cityoflfp.com/617/Hybrid-Planning-Commission-
Meetings. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes. 

7. REPORT FROM CITY COUNCIL LIAISON 

8. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Director's Memo to Planning Commission 

B. Comprehensive Plan Update Discussion 

Review of Land Use and Environmental Quality Elements 

C. 2014-15 Planning Commission Draft Schedule 

D. Comprehensive Plan Consultant Scope and Schedule 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Election of Chair and      Vice Chair 

10. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

11. ADDITIONAL CITIZEN COMMENTS 

12. AGENDA FOR NEXT MEETING 

2



13. ADJOURN 

Any person requiring a disability accommodation should contact city hall at 206-368-5440 by 4:00 p.m. 
on the day of the meeting for more information.   
 

3



 

1 

 

   1 
City of Lake Forest Park - Planning Commission 2 
Draft Regular Meeting Minutes: January 10, 2023 3 

In-person and Zoom Hybrid Meeting 4 
 5 
 6 
 7 

Planning Commissioners present: Chair Maddy Larson, Ira Gross, David Kleweno Melissa Cranmer, 8 
Ashton Alvarez McCartney, Meredith LaBonte, Walter Hicks, Vice Chair Lois Lee  9 
 10 
Staff and others present: Steve Bennett, Planning Director; Nick Holland, Senior Planner; Councilmember 11 
Lorri Bodi  12 
 13 
Members of the Public: Cherie Finazzo, LeAnne Nelson 14 
 15 
Planning Commissioners absent: n/a 16 
 17 
Call to order: Chair Larson called the meeting to order at 7:02 pm.   18 
 19 
Land Acknowledgement:  Cmr. Gross read the land acknowledgement.  20 
 21 
Approval of Agenda 22 
Cmr. Gross made a motion to approve the agenda, Cmr. Cranmer seconded, and the motion to approve the 23 
agenda carried unanimously.  24 
 25 
Approval of Meeting Minutes 26 
Cmr. McCartney made a motion to approve the December 13, 2022, meeting minutes. Cmr. Gross seconded 27 
and the motion carried unanimously. 28 
 29 
Meeting Dates: 30 
The next regular meeting is scheduled for February 14, 2023.  Discussion occurred regarding rescheduling the 31 
meeting.  It was tentatively decided that the next meeting would be scheduled for February 7th.  32 
 33 
Citizen Comment 34 
Leanne Nelson said that she has worked for local government and would like to be a planning commissioner.   35 
 36 
Report from City Council Liaison 37 
Councilmember Bodi said the Council will consider the sign code and reasonable use exception code change 38 
recommendations during February.  She said that she plans on continuing to function as Council liaison.  39 
Chair Larson asked if a member of the Planning Commission should be at the meeting for the code 40 
recommendations and Councilmember Bodi responded and said that she would expect Planning Commission 41 
representation at the meeting.  Chair Larson asked the other commissioners to consider attending that 42 
meeting.  43 
 44 
Vice Chair Lee thanked Councilmember Bodi for her time.  45 
 46 
Old Business 47 

• Comprehensive Plan Update- 48 

 49 
Chair Larson introduced the topics. Director Bennett provided some background information on the 50 
elements up for discussion.   51 
 52 

4

Section 4, ItemA.



 

2 

 

 Review of 2015 Comprehensive Plan Transportation Element 1 

 2 
Cmr. Cranmer asked about the transportation benefit district funds mentioned on page 86 in volume one of 3 
the comprehensive plan.  Director Bennett provided his understanding of how the Council serves and the 4 
district board. .  Cmr. Hicks provided some input on the topic as well.  Director Bennett proceeded to explain 5 
the purpose of the transportation element of the comprehensive plan. He said that there had been a lot of 6 
planning initiatives since 2015 on the topic of transportation.  He said that the plan serves as a source for city 7 
policy and describes how the City Council prioritizes certain transportation projects so they can eventually 8 
qualify for funding by way of grants.  Chair Larson provided her perspective on the purpose of the 9 
transportation element of the comprehensive plan.  She said that some funds have been difficult to obtain 10 
because of the lack of formal policies surrounding certain transportation projects. Director Bennett said that 11 
public works staff is valuable in identifying the areas where transportation projects should be prioritized.  He 12 
talked about how the comprehensive plan serves as the overarching policy document to support regulations 13 
and code changes.  14 
 15 
Director Bennett presented the multi-modal transportation portion of the transportation element and said 16 
that there haven’t been any regulations adopted to implement the multi-modal policy and suggested that the 17 
policy could be removed from the plan if it no longer is of priority to the city. Cmr. Kleweno asked for clarity 18 
on the consultant’s role for the comprehensive plan update.  Director Bennett indicated that the consultant 19 
would perform a gap analysis to determine what needs to be amended on the comprehensive plan.  Cmr. 20 
Kleweno asked about the purpose of the comprehensive plan.  Director Bennett responded and provided an 21 
explanation of how the comprehensive plan is used to establish policies which in turn can lead to the 22 
adoption of new regulations.  Chair Larson thanked Cmr. Kleweno for his questions and said that the 23 
community may have similar questions about the purpose of the comprehensive plan.  Cmr. Cranmer said 24 
that she would like to see more state funding for improvements to state highways.  Director Bennett 25 
explained how elements and plans such as the city’s safe streets program help to get infrastructure installed, 26 
because their priority is listed within the plan.  A discussion ensued regarding how the consultant for the 27 
comprehensive plan can assist in identifying priority updates to the plan.  Chair Larson suggested highlighting 28 
the elements and policies that might bring questions for the consultant.  Cmr. Gross asked if the consultant 29 
would attend planning commission meetings and Director Bennett responded and said that they would be 30 
attending. 31 

 32 

 Review of 2015 Comprehensive Plan Economic Development Element  33 
Director Bennett provided some background on the Economic Development element and said that Town 34 
Center has been the focus of economic development efforts since the last comprehensive plan update.  He 35 
said that the Town Center plan and code updates were done in part to promote economic development.  He 36 
said that for there to be more of revenue generated in town center, more people need to live in the town 37 
center area.  Director Bennett asked Cmr. Hicks if he has input on this element since he suggested the 38 
Commission discuss it at this meeting.  Cmr. Hicks responded that there may be other areas where economic 39 
development could occur other than town center and suggested that amendments to the goals and policies 40 
could enhance economic development in other parts of the city. Chair Larson provided her perspective on 41 
this plan element.  Cmr. Gross suggested talking to business owners about how economic development might 42 
evolve in the city.  Cmr. Kleweno asked what the Commission’s questions might be for the consultant, so 43 
that a thoughtful and productive discussion can occur.  Director Bennett responded that the next item on the 44 
agenda, consultant scope discussion, could provide a good opportunity for input on that issue.  He added that 45 
the public engagement process will also generate questions for the consultant to address.   46 

 47 

 Review of draft consultant scope of work for Comprehensive Plan Update    48 
Chair Larson asked Director Bennett what the objective was of the consultant scope discussion.  Director 49 
Bennett responded and said that he wants to see if there is a consensus on what the consultant should be 50 
working on.  Cmr. McCartney asked how the consultant would work with the Commission. Director Bennett 51 

5

Section 4, ItemA.



 

3 

 

responded that they will prepare a strategy for public engagement, report on the outcomes of the public 1 
engagement, do a gap analysis on the current Comp Plan and then they will draft updates for each element 2 
which the Commission will review.  Ultimately, the Commission will be able to review the final document as 3 
whole.  Director Bennett also said that the format of the plan would also be discussed and could change if 4 
needed.   5 
 6 
Cmr. Gross asked how the progress of the consultant’s work is tracked.  Director Bennett responded that it 7 
would differ from code updates other projects that have percentage-based milestones.  He suggested that the 8 
review would start with the land use element since it drives everything else.  He suggested that each element’s 9 
revisions would be touched on twice prior to compiling the new draft plan into one document. Chair Larson 10 
provided her perspective on how the consultant should provide updates on the progress. Director Bennett 11 
said that this process should be more predictable than some of the previous code updates the Commission 12 
has undertaken.   13 
 14 
Director Bennett talked about the other components that would make up the Request For Proposals (RFP) 15 
that would be published on order to hire a consultant.  He said a selection committee would be appointed 16 
that would make a recommendation to the Mayor and Council regarding their top choice for the consultant 17 
to be hired.  He said that we may benefit from some of the other cities updating their plans, because 18 
consultants can provide input based upon their experiences with other cities. He suggested that this comp 19 
plan update process could be fairly selective in what gets updated. There shouldn’t be a need to do a 20 
wholesale update to the plan like the last one. Director Bennett said that the last RFP for the previous 21 
comprehensive plan update largely focused on economic development.   22 
 23 
Chair Larson walked through each bullet point on the draft consultant scope for discussion.  Cmr. Cranmer 24 
suggested that a report card should be part of the scope. The purpose would be to track progress and an 25 
assessment of whether adopted vision and polices are being realized in in actual improvements to the city.  26 
She said that it could help create a sense of transparency for the public.  Vice Chair Lee said that the 27 
commission should define a community identity and vision for the community.  Director Bennett agreed that 28 
the report card concept is one that could be incorporated into a consultant scope of work and RFP.  Cmr. 29 
McCartney suggested conducting surveys to connect with the public.  Cmr. Hicks said that the consultant’s 30 
scope should include meetings with the public and Council and asked if there should be specific language to 31 
speak to the frequency of meetings like those mentioned.  Director Bennett indicated he thought that the 32 
consultant should have the opportunity to create a strategy on how they would engage with the public.  That 33 
engagement strategy would be subject to approval by the Commission and Council. Vice Chair Lee asked 34 
how budgeted funds would be spent.  Director Bennett responded that a more robust timeline will be 35 
developed once a consultant is hired and explained how funds will be allocated for the purpose of paying the 36 
consultant.  Chair Larson suggested language for the scope to reflect what the commission desires for 37 
meeting frequency with key stakeholders.  Cmr. Cranmer pointed out that the commission met 29 times 38 
during the last update and she asked for clarity on that frequency.  Director Bennett responded and said that 39 
this update shouldn’t be as lengthy and intense as the last one.  Vice Chair Lee suggested that the consultant 40 
be somewhat responsible for keeping the commission on schedule for the update.   41 
 42 
Cmr. Kleweno asked what the overall objective is for the process. He suggested including an objective 43 
statement to define the purpose of the effort.  Chair Larson suggested adding a gap analysis for each topic 44 
that the consultant might work on.  Director Bennett summarized what he understood the suggested changes 45 
and additions to be.  Chair Larson asked if there would be an opportunity for input on the other portions of 46 
the RFP and talked about each bullet point within the draft scope.  She suggested some differing language for 47 
the fourth bullet point in the scope. Director Bennett indicated he appreciated the suggested changes and 48 
thought they would improve the RFP. Cmr. Kleweno asked if the commission should have some perimeters 49 
surrounding the vision statement.  Director Bennett responded and provided a strategy on how the 50 
commission may establish a background for a vision.  51 
 52 

6

Section 4, ItemA.



 

4 

 

Chair Larson asked about the housing needs assessment and how it is defined in the context of the update.  1 
Director Bennett said that and the focus had evolved since the original concept was discussed. He provided 2 
an update on the scope of the housing needs assessment, which will be part of the housing element update.  3 
Discussion continued related to the consultant scope of work.  Director Bennett provided an explanation of 4 
those items mandated by the growth management act, like the update to the critical areas code.  He spoke 5 
about the state requirement that codes reflect the adopted comprehensive plan.  Director Bennett explained 6 
to Chair Larson that the comprehensive plan drives the content of regulations and codes, and that regulations 7 
and codes must be consistent with the policies, statements, and goals of adopted comprehensive plans and 8 
sub area plans.  Discussion ensued about how to develop a public outreach plan and how other boards and 9 
committees can become involved in the comprehensive plan update.  Cmr. McCartney asked if the 10 
commission should review the entire RFP. Director Bennett responded that the commission will get a chance 11 
to see the complete RFP but it is a product of the City Administration and he reiterated his appreciation of 12 
the Commission’s suggestions on the scope.   13 

 14 
New Business 15 

 2022 Planning Commission Annual Report  16 

 17 
Chair Larson opened the floor for discussion of the 2022 annual report.  Chair Larson suggested adding to 18 
the October meeting section to reference the recommendation of the reasonable use exception code 19 
amendments to Council.  She asked how to account for items that didn’t get accomplished which were 20 
scheduled to be done in the year’s work plan.  Director Bennett and Cmr. Gross suggested adding a sentence 21 
at the end of the report to reflect how the commission didn’t get to work plan items.  Chair Larson suggested 22 
adding, “work on the SMP wasn’t prioritized because Council was to finish the updates directly”; She also 23 
suggested adding, “work on the comp plan update was pushed to 2023”. 24 

 25 

 2023 Planning Commission Work Plan 26 
Chair Larson opened the floor for discussion of this topic.  She suggested using the term “housing needs 27 
assessment” instead of the language in the draft.  Vice Chair Lee suggested spending 100% of Commission 28 
time working on the comprehensive plan update.  All agreed.  Chair Larson asked how the Commission is 29 
involved in public outreach and workshops.  Director Bennett provided an explanation and Councilmember 30 
Bodi said that the Council would prefer that the Commission be a primary point of contact for the 31 
community.   32 
 33 
Cmr. Alvarez McCartney noted that her last name is McCartney.  Cmr. McCartney moved to approve the 34 
amended 2023 Planning Commission work plan and 2022 Planning Commission annual report; Vice Chair 35 
Lee seconded; and the motion passed unanimously.   36 
 37 
Reports and Announcements 38 
Director Bennett noted that a new city arborist had started work in December and her name is Hannah 39 
Swanson. 40 
 41 
Additional Citizen Comments:  42 
Leanne Nelson said that her questions were answered during the meeting. 43 
 44 
Cherie Finazzo said that she is pleased to be here.  She asked how the materials get published and Director 45 
Bennett responded that the meeting packet is available on the website.   46 
 47 
Don Fiene said that he may have comments later.  48 
 49 
Agenda for Next Meeting: 50 

7

Section 4, ItemA.



 

5 

 

Comprehensive Plan updates.  Director Bennett suggested reviewing the land use element for the next 1 
meeting.  Chair Larson mentioned that she is interested in learning more about housing needs assessments.  2 
There was discussion about the content of the planning short course videos.  3 
 4 
Adjournment: 5 
Cmr. Hicks made a motion to adjourn the meeting, Cmr. Gross seconded, and the motion carried 6 
unanimously.  The meeting was adjourned at 8:59 pm. 7 

 8 
APPROVED: 9 

 10 
 11 
______________________ 12 

                         Maddy Larson, Planning Commission Chair 13 

8

Section 4, ItemA.



 

1 | P a g e  

 

 

Memorandum 
To:   Planning Commission 

From:   Steve Bennett, Planning Director  

Date:   February 6, 2023 

Re: February 7, 2023 Meeting Agenda Materials pertaining to Old Business – 

2024 Comprehensive Plan Update  

Attachments: 1. Consultant Scope of Work for 2015 Comprehensive Plan Update 

2. Planning Commission draft schedule for 2014-2015  

              

 

At the January 10, 2023 meeting, the Commission reviewed a draft consultant scope of work for 

the 2024 Comprehensive Plan Update which would be a component of a request for proposals 

from consultants interested in providing assistance to the City with the project. During the 

meeting, there was discussion about how specific the scope needed to be and whether it should 

specify how many meetings the consultant would be required to attend. The attachments to this 

memo are intended to provide examples of the level of detail that can be expected once a 

planning consultant has been hired by the City.  

 

Attachment 1 is the consultant’s scope of work, budget, and schedule that was attached to the 

agreement between the City and the consultant (Studio 3MW later renamed to 3 Square Blocks) 

which was approved by the City Council in April of 2014.  

 

Attachment 2 is a draft schedule for Planning Commission review of the consultant’s policy 

guidance and draft comprehensive plan elements. This schedule was prepared shortly after the 

Council approved the agreement with Studio 3MW. This schedule was reviewed by the Planning 

Commission on May 6, 2014. The minutes of that meeting and others can be found at the 

following link: https://www.cityoflfp.gov/Archive.aspx?AMID=53 

 

Commissioners or members of the public wishing to download the 2015 Comprehensive Update 

will find it at the following link: https://www.cityoflfp.gov/160/Lake-Forest-Park-

Comprehensive-Plan 

 

9

Section 8, ItemA.

https://www.cityoflfp.gov/Archive.aspx?AMID=53
https://www.cityoflfp.gov/160/Lake-Forest-Park-Comprehensive-Plan
https://www.cityoflfp.gov/160/Lake-Forest-Park-Comprehensive-Plan


Lake Forest Park Planning Commission 

DRAFT 2014 – 2015 Draft Meeting Schedule 

MEETING 

DATE 
TOPIC 

NOTES 

May 6 
PROJECT KICK-OFF  

Overview, schedule, citizen participation 

 

PHASE 1 REVIEW:  NATURAL ENVIRONMENT, LAND USE, HOUSING 
 

June 3 

NATURAL ENVIRONMENT STUDY SESSION #1 

Natural environment review, policy 

discussion 

Consider joint meeting with 

Environmental Quality Commission 

Alternate date: May 26 

June 17 
LAND USE STUDY SESSION #1 

Land use review, policy discussion 

 

July 1 
HOUSING STUDY SESSION #1 

Housing review, policy discussion 

 

July 15 
NATURAL ENVIRONMENT STUDY SESSION #2 

Draft goals and policies 

Consider joint meeting with 

Environmental Quality Commission 

Alternate date: July 28 

August 5 
LAND USE STUDY SESSION #2 

Draft goals and policies 

 

August 19 
HOUSING STUDY SESSION #2 

Draft goals and policies 

 

PHASE 2 REVIEW: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE; HUMAN SERVICES,  

September 2 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STUDY SESSION #1 

Economic development review, policy 

discussion 

Consider joint meeting with Economic 

Development Commission 

Alternate date: September 3 

September 16 
RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE STUDY SESSION #1 

Parks review, policy update 

Consider joint meeting with 

Community Services Commission 

Alternate date: September 3 

October 7 
HUMAN SERVICES STUDY SESSION #1 

Human services review, policy update 

 

October 21 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STUDY SESSION #2 

Draft goals and policies 

Consider joint meeting with Economic 

Development Commission 

Alternate date: November 5 

November 4 
RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE STUDY SESSION #2 

Draft goals and policies 

Consider joint meeting with 

Community Services Commission 

Alternate date: November 5 

November 18 

HUMAN SERVICES STUDY SESSION #2 

Draft goals and policies 

 

 

 

10

Section 8, ItemC.



April 21, 2014 

2 

 

MEETING 

DATE 
TOPIC 

NOTES 

PHASE 3 REVIEW:  TRANSPORTATION, UTILITIES, CAPITAL FACILITIES 
 

December 2 
TRANSPORTATION STUDY SESSION #1 

Transportation review, policy update 

Consider joint meeting with 

Transportation Commission 

December 16 
UTILITIES STUDY SESSION #1 

Utilities review, policy update 

 

January 6, 

2015 

CAPITAL FACILITIES STUDY SESSION #1 

Capital facilities review, policy update 

 

January 20 
TRANSPORTATION STUDY SESSION #2 

Draft goals and policies 

Consider joint meeting with 

Transportation Commission 

Alternative meeting date: February 3 

February 3 
UTILITIES STUDY SESSION #2 

Draft goals and policies 

 

February 17 
CAPITAL FACILITIES STUDY SESSION #2 

Draft goals and policies 

 

PHASE 4 REVIEW: PUBLIC HEARINGS, RECOMMENDATION 
 

March 3 
COMPILED DRAFT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

Staff recommendation, public hearing 

 

March 17 
COMPILED DRAFT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

Staff recommendation, public hearing 

 

April 7 COMPILED DRAFT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

Staff recommendation, public hearing 

 

 

11

Section 8, ItemC.



12

Section 8, ItemD.



13

Section 8, ItemD.



14

Section 8, ItemD.



15

Section 8, ItemD.



16

Section 8, ItemD.



17

Section 8, ItemD.



18

Section 8, ItemD.



19

Section 8, ItemD.



20

Section 8, ItemD.



21

Section 8, ItemD.



22

Section 8, ItemD.



23

Section 8, ItemD.



24

Section 8, ItemD.


	Top
	Section 4, ItemA.	Approval of Meeting Minutes
	pcnotes2023-1-10 mtg draft_JAN

	Section 8, ItemA.	Director's Memo to Planning Commission
	Memo2PC 2023 Feb6

	Section 8, ItemC.	2014-15 Planning Commission Draft Schedule
	Attch2 Plg Commission draft Schedule 2014-15

	Section 8, ItemD.	Comprehensive Plan Consultant Scope and Schedule
	Attch1 Consultant scope-budget-schedule 2015 CompPlan Update

	Bottom

